

LONGWICK-CUM-ILMER PARISH COUNCIL MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON TUESDAY 16^{TH} MAY 2023 AT 7.30PM AT LONGWICK VILLAGE HALL

PRESENT

Cllr Val McPherson BEM, Cllrs Brian Richards, Rolf van Apeldoorn, Alex Barter, Jane Rogers, Richard Myers and Tracey Martin (Clerk)

Buckinghamshire Councillor: Matthew Walsh and Gary Hall

21 members of the public present

Public Participation Questions Raised:

- A member of the public asked for an update on the road markings in Barn Road / Boxer Road. Cllr Hall explained
 that the initial feedback from the LAT was it was not suitable for road markings however, a meeting is scheduled on
 site to discuss further and come up with a sympathetic solution. Cllr Walsh added the current priority for the new
 contractor is pot holes and they will be working on those over the next 60 days and would expect a response after
 this time.
- Concerns were raised on speed limits within the Parish. A member of the public reported that the speed indicator had recently shown somebody doing 72mph. Cllr Myers stated that there must be a fault with the device as it would not read a speed that high.
- A question was asked on the asset register and the current values being the same as purchase values. The Clerk explained that assets do not depreciate on Parish Council asset registers.
- Concerns were raised that there are no police camera vans in the parish / average speed cameras and that no feedback is received from the Speedwatch group. Cllr McPherson responded that she has spoken to the police about a camera and they have said no as the data does not warrant one. A suggestion was made by another member of the public that concerns are raised with the North West Chilterns Transport and Road Group. Cllr Walsh stated that the group is an advisory group but can make recommendations and asked residents to contact him if they wished for him to raise anything with the group. Cllr Walsh added that the proposals that the Parish Council are working on are possible and overall, the project is very good.
- Cllr Rogers stated that the volunteers at the side of the road with the speed indicator device are all volunteers and they would be grateful for more volunteers. A member of the public stated that they did not think the Speedwatch sign was being placed in the correct position. Clerk will discuss with Speedwatch group.

Annual Meeting of the Council started at 7.49pm.

- 15. ELECTION OF THE CHAIRMAN TO THE COUNCIL AND TO RECEIVE THE CHAIRMAN'S DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE: Cllr van Apeldoorn wished to abstain from the vote and for it to recorded in the minutes. He also expressed his wish for a different Chairman but no Councillors wished to stand. Councillor McPherson was proposed by Cllr Rogers and seconded by Cllr Myers. There being no further nominations a vote was taken and all were in favour and Cllr McPherson was voted as Chairman.
- 16. ELECTION OF THE VICE-CHAIRMAN TO THE COUNCIL AND TO RECEIVE THE VICE-CHAIRMAN'S DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE: Cllr van Apeldoorn wished to abstain from the vote and for it to recorded in the minutes. Councillor Myers was proposed by Cllr McPherson and seconded by Cllr Barter. There being no further nominations a vote was taken and all were in favour and Cllr Myers was voted as Vice-Chairman.
- **17. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:** Cllr McPherson welcomed all to the meeting. Apologies were received from Buckinghamshire Councillors: Alan Turner
- 18. **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:** None
- 19. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE PARISH COUNCIL MEETING HELD 18TH APRIL 2023: The minutes were approved by all Councillors and the minutes were signed.
- 20. TO APPOINT REPRESENTATIVES ON THE UNDER MENTIONED BODIES / GROUPS:
 - a. **Community Boards:** Current members are Cllr McPherson and Cllr Rogers. Cllr Rogers expressed a wish for somebody else to attend the meetings however, there were no volunteers so Cllr McPherson and Cllr Rogers will continue.



- b. **Monks Risborough and Princes Risborough Parochial Charities:** Only required every four years. Current members remain.
- 21. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF STANDING ORDERS, FINANCIAL REGULATIONS, RISK ASSESSMENT AND CODE OF CONDUCT: All Councillors were in favour of adopting the above policies.
- 22. REVIEW OF CURRENT POLICIES: It was agreed that all policies apart from those in minute reference 21 would be adopted and reviewed on a 3 yearly basis or sooner if required.

23. UPDATE FROM BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCILLORS:

- a. £3.5m has been allocated to improve pot holes and more money for next year. The delays in the repairs have been due to the weather. Two new pot holes machines are operating in the area.
- b. s.106 monies are starting to feed in and the Risborough Ward Councillors will be pushing the bus team to work on a Monday Friday bus service.
 c. The road resurfacing scheme will see 240 roads resurfaced with a few in the Parish including Lower Icknield
- c. The road resurfacing scheme will see 240 roads resurfaced with a few in the Parish including Lower Icknield Way, Bar Lane and also the A4010 and residents should see a noticeable improvement on the roads.
- d. Waste Recycling Centre, usage figures continue to increase.
- e. Cllr Barter raised a concern again with the footpath in the layby on the Thame Road. Cllr Hall stated that it has been inspected by the LAT.
- f. Cllr Richards stated a resident had written in regarding an accident on Stockwell Lane and asked for a visit. This will be arranged.
- g. Cllr van Apeldoorn reported that the trees which had been planted in the layby towards Chinnor some had been stolen. These will be replaced weather permitting later in the year.
- h. Cllr Rogers asked for an update on the heap of rubbish in Askett. Cllr Hall responded that a meeting with enforcement has taken place and they are looking to take direct action to clear the site and a charge will be placed on the land.

24. TO RECEIVE MATTERS ARISING NOT OTHERWISE ON THE AGENDA: None

25. PLANNING:

The following new applications were reviewed, discussed and comments approved.

23/05738/FUL: OS Parcel 4060 Thame Road Longwick: Concerns over the leylandii trees and it being situated between two grade II listed buildings.

22/07563/FUL: Maccabee Kennels Bar Lane Owlswick (amended plans): Concerns regarding traffic, speed limits and no pavements. Request that highways be given a brief to investigate concerns.

23/05954/FUL: Orchard View Stockwell Lane Little Meadle: No comment

23/06188/ADRC: Old Berkeley House Owlswick: For information only, no comment required All comments were approved.

The following applications status has changed:

23/05534/FUL: 1 Innkeepers Court Longwick: Application permitted

23/05970/CTREE: Horsenden Manor Horsenden Lane Princes Risborough: Not to make a tree preservation order

26. TO NOTE MAY PAYMENTS FOR APPROVAL:

Payee	Net	VAT	Gross	Comment			
Tracey Martin	£668.10		£668.10	Clerk Salary			
Cashplus	£15.00		£15.00	Reinstate Balance			
HMRC	£87.20		£87.20	PAYE			
Longwick C of E School	£5,000.00		£5,000.00	Grant approved 18/04/23 Item 8			
Jane Olds	£250.00		£250.00	Internal Audit 22-23			
Shield Maintenance Ltd	£143.00	£28.60	£171.60	Bin Emptying			
Bucks Council	£3,689.53	£737.91	£4,427.44	Speed Data Collection (CIL 19/20)			
D J Hounslow	£200.00		£200.00	Flag Pole Installation			
Total	£10,052.83	£766.51	£10,819.34	v			
The Clerk reported a late invoice received							
PRTC .	£310.70	£62.14	£372.84	D/S Grass Cutting			



£5.00	£1.00	£6.00	Monthly Top Up
ng Orders			
£25.00		£25.00	Electricity monthly payment
£41.80		£41.80	Pension Contribution
£66.80		£66.80	
£17,291.49		£17,291.49	1st half of precept
£117,136.78		£117,136.78	CIL
	ng Orders £25.00 £41.80 £66.80	ng Orders £25.00 £41.80 £66.80	ng Orders £25.00 £41.80 £66.80 £17,291.49 £17,291.49

All payments were approved.

- 27. TO NOTE YEAR END ACCOUNTS: Reviewed and noted
- **28. REVIEW OF 2023-2024 ASSET REGISTER:** Cllr Rogers requested two benches be added. One in Ilmer which is approx. 3 years old and one in Owlswick which is around 40 years old. **Action: Clerk**

29. TO REVIEW INTERNAL AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORT:

- a. Review of Internal Controls: A checklist for the Councillor may be useful: A checklist will be provided. Cllr McPherson asked Councillors if anybody would like to take over checking of the quarterly accounts. Cllr Richards volunteered and all Councillors were in favour.
- b. **Budgetary Controls: Ensure that the budget expenditure amount is minuted before the precept:** The Clerk has noted this recommendation.
- c. Reserves: A policy with itemised amounts should be devised for clarification: The Clerk will prepare a reserves policy for approval by full council.
- d. VAT: Ensure reclaim is made at least annually: The Clerk reported the claim has been made.
- e. Asset Control: Establish title registrations and include on the register: Clerk to add.
- f. Investment Registers: As the Council has investments of over £100k, JPAG recommends an investment strategy: The Clerk will prepare an investment strategy for approval by full council.
- g. Carry out a Review of Effectiveness: Clerk to prepare.
- h. Training for Clerks and Councillors. There should be a regular agenda item for training and a budget: Councillor agreed that an agenda item is not necessary as the Clerk circulates training when it is available.
- i. Standing Orders to be updated to 2022 version: Approved under minute reference 21.
- j. All decisions and therefor minute reference. This should include the details of the contractor / supplier, the details of the work / item together with the expected cost: Noted
- k. Long term agreements such as dog bins / grass etc should be reviewed at least every three years to ensure the Council is obtaining best value for money: Councillors felt that this was already happening so no further action required.
- Annual subscriptions and regular payments should be included in a list of regular expenditure which should be agreed at the April meeting for the new financial year: Being discussed later in meeting reference 31.
- m. Reminder that the Council has a corporate responsibility and that Councillors have no individual decision-making powers. The only person who has authority is the Clerk as Proper Officer. This includes placing orders, arranging payments and discussions with Contractor: Noted by all Councillors.
- n. Staff Appraisal: Recommendation that a staffing committee is formed of at least three members which is able to perform an annual review of the Clerk's employment: Staffing Committee to be formed and appraisal carried out.

30. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY RETURN (AGAR):

- a. **To consider, complete and approve section 1:** The Chairman read out the statements and Councillors agreed to answer yes to all statements. The Chairman signed section 1.
- b. To consider and approve section 2: Councillors approved the figures and the Chairman signed section 2.
- c. To approve Elector Rights of Inspection dates commencing Monday 5th June 2023 and ending Friday 14th July 2023: Approved



d. Cllr Richards thanked the Clerk for her work on the accounts and Cllr McPherson asked for it to be minuted.

31. TO APPROVE REOCCURING PAYMENTS AND CONTRACTORS FOR 23-24:

Shield Maintenance £171-£200 per month Bin Emptying **PRTC Devolved Services** £23.90 hourly rate **PRTC** Playing Field Grass & Ilmer £4,016 per annum **BMKALC** £300 per annum Subs Accounts Software £600 per annum Scribe PKF Littlejohn External Audit £600 per annum Jane Olds Internal Audit £250-300 per annum **EDF Energy** Electricity £25 per month **Buckinghamshire Council** Annual RoSPA £50 per annum £700 per annum Chiltern Society Footpath Clearance £950 per annum **AJGBIL** Insurance **Everything Figures** Payroll Processing £150 per annum

Approved Contractors:

Handymen: Danny Hounslow and James Glasgow

Kevin Wharton Fencing and Gates

Duckworth Arboriculture

Oxford Oak

For works up to £500 the Clerk has delegated authority to approve works with these Contractors, this will be reported to the Clerk immediately and at the next Full Council meeting

Payments and Contractors Approved

32. TO DISCUSS AND DECIDE ON ANY RESPONSES TO CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED AND / OR ISSUESD BY THE PARISH COUNCIL: The Clerk had received the following correspondence:

- a. Concerns that there are no average speed cameras mentioned in the Traffic Calming Plans: This had been discussed in the public participation session of the meeting so no further comments required.
- b. Request to have Traffic Calming on the agenda. All Councillors were asked whether they would like it on the next agenda. Cllr van Apeldoorn raised concerns that the proposal doesn't include pedestrian crossing. Cllr McPherson responded that this will be considered in the next phase. It was agreed an agenda item was not required until a response is received from Buckinghamshire Council on the 1st Phase Proposals.
- c. A request for CIL information on the website. The Clerk has directed the resident to the website where the information is available.
- d. A member of the public has requested tree planting in the village. The Clerk reported that she had received an email today from The Climate Response Team at Buckinghamshire Council who are currently promoting the Local Authority Treescapes Fund (LATF). Concerns were raised about the size of the trees as it is vital there is somebody to nurture them. The Clerk will circulate details so Councillors can decide if this is something they wish to pursue.
- e. Cllr McPherson reported she had received an email from somebody wishing to volunteer to take over the newsletter.
- 33. TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS ON MEETINGS THAT THEY HAVE PARTICIPATED IN ON BEHALF OF THE PARISH COUNCIL: None attended
- 34. TO CONSIDER AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING: Send through to Clerk
- **35. TO CONFIRM THE DATES AND TIMES OF THE NEXT PARISH COUNCIL MEETING:** Tuesday 20th June 2023 at 7.30pm at Longwick Village Hall.
- **36.** There being no further business the meeting closed at 8.40pm

Chair	Date
-------	------